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heARiNGS CLERK 
rWA - - REGIGN 10 

BEFORE THE 
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

In the Maller of: 

Idaho Milk Products, Inc . 
2249 South Tiger Drive 
Jerome. Idaho 83338 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

_________________ R_es~p_o_n_de_n_t_. ______ ) 

DOCKET NO. EPCRA- 10-2012-0043 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND 
FINAL ORDER 

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

1. 1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO") is issued under the au thority 

vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (,'EPA ") by 

Sect ion 325 or the Emergency Planning and Community RighHo·Know Act C"EPCRA "). 

42 U.S.C. § 11 045. 

J .2. The Admini strator hos delegated the aUlhol;ty to issue the Final Order contained 

in Part V of this CA FO 10 the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who has redelegated 

thi s authority to the Regional Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10. 

1.3. Pursuant to EPCRA Section 325, 42 U.S.c. § 11045, and in accordance with the 

"Consolidatcd Rules or Pract ice Governing the Adm inist rat ive Assessment of Civil Pena lt ies:' 
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40 C.F.R. Pm1 22, EPA issues, and Idaho Milk Products, Inc. ("Respondent") agrees to issuance 

ot~ the Firml Order con tained in Part V of thi s CAFO. 

II. PRELlM1NARY STATEMENT 

2.1. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), issuance of this CAFO 

commences thi s proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order con tained in Part Vof 

tlus CAFO becomes effect ive. 

2.2. The Director of the Office of Compliance and Enforcement, EPA Region 10 

("Complainant") has been de legated the authority pursuant to EPCRA Section 325, 42 V.S.c. 

§ 11045. to sign consent agreements between EPA and the party against whom an administrative 

penalty for vio lations of Section 313 of EPCRA is proposed to be assessed. 

2.3. Part III of thi s CAFO contains a concise statement orthe fac tual and lega l basis 

for the alleged violations of EPCRA together with the speci fi c provisions of EPCRA and the 

implementing regulations that Respondent is alleged to have violated. 

ill. ALLEGATIONS 

3.1 Under Section 3 13(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(8), and 40 C.F. R. §§ 372.22 

and 372.30, the owner or operator of a facility covered by Section 3 [3 must submit rHU1uall y. no 

later than July I o f each year, a Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Repol1ing Form. EPA Fonn 

9350·1 ("Form R") ror each toxic chemical referenced in Section 3 13(c) or EPCRA and listed in 

40 C.F.R. § 372.65 thut was manuractured, imported, processed. or otherwise used during the 

preceding calendar year in quantities exceedi ng the establ ished toxic chemical thresho ld 

specified in Section 3 13(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(1), and 40 C. F.R. §§ 372.25, 372.27, 

and 372.28. 
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3.2 Under 40 C.F.R. § 372.22, a faciJity that meets each of the following criteria in a 

calendar year is II covered faci lilY fo r that ca lendar year and must report under 40 C.F.R. 

§ 372.30: 

a. the facililY has 10 or more fuli-lime employees; 

b. the facility is in a Standard lndustrial Classification (SIC) major group or 

industry code or North American indllst];al C lass ification System (NAlCS) code listed in 

40 C.F.R. § 372.23; and 

c. the fac ility manufactured (inc luding imported), processed, or otherwise uscd fl 

toxic chemical in excess of an applicable threshold quantity of that chemical sel forth in 40 

C.F.R. §§ 372.25, 372.27, or 372.28. 

3.3 The toxic chemicals which are subject to the reporting requi rement of 40 C.F.R. 

§ 372.30 are listed at 40 C.F.R. § 372.65. 

3.4 Respondent is the owner and operator ofa fac ility located at 2249 South Tiger 

Drive, Jerome, ldaho (the ·'Facility·"). 

3.5 During calendar yeM 2009, the Faci lity had 10 or more full-time employees. 

3.6 The facil ity is included in NAJCS code 311514, which is included in the list of 

covered induslry codes round at 40 C.F.R. § 372.23. 

3.7 ·':--l itric acid" is a toxic chemical listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65. The thresho ld 

quanti ty for nitric acid is 10,000 pounds otherwise used du ring the year, as sel forth at 40 C.F.R. 

§ 372.25. 

3.8 -'Nitrate compounds" is a chemical category listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65. The 

threshold quanti ty jor nitrate compounds is 25,000 pounds manufactured or processed during the 

year, as set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 372.25. 
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3.9 The F<lcility otherwise used more th<ln 10,000 pounds of nitric <lcid during 

ca lendar year 2009. 

3.10 The Facility manufactured more than 25,000 pounds of nitrate compounds during 

c<llendar year 2009. 

3.11 Respondent failed to file a Fonn R with the EPA and the slate of Idaho for nitric 

acid for ca lend<lr year 2009 by July 1,2010. Respondent filed a Form R with EPA and the State 

of Idaho for nitri c acid covering calendar yenr 2009 on June 27, 20 II (361 days late). 

3. 12 Respondent failed to file a Fonn R with the EPA and the state of Idaho for nitrate 

compounds for c<llendar year 2009 by Jul y I, 2010. Respondent filed a Form R with EPA and 

the State of Idaho lor nitrate compounds coveling calendar year 2009 on June 27, 20 II (36 1 

days late). 

3.13 Respondent, the owner and operator of a facility with ten or more employees, 

operating under NA ICS code 311514, which otherwise used more than 10,000 pounds of nitric 

acid and manufactured morc than 25,000 pounds of nitrate compounds during calendar 2009, 

violated Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(0), and 40 c.r.R. § 372.30 by failing to 

file the required forms for calendar year 2009 by July 1, 20 I O. 

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT 

4.1. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in Pan III of this 

CAFO. 

4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the spec ific factual allegations contained in 

Pan lIT of this CAFO. 

4.3. in light of the nature of the alJeged violations. Respondent's actions to correct the 

violations after hav ing been notified by Com plainant. and Respondent's willingness to settle this 

In the !\'l:ttter of: lduho Milk Prod ucts, Inc. 
Docket Number: EI'CRA·IO·20J2·0043 
Consent Agreeml'nt and Fillil l Ordl'r 
Page:l of8 

U.S. Euvirolllllenlall>roleclioll Agt'llC), 
12f10 Sixth Ave nue, Suite 900 

Seatt le, Wns hinglOlI 9810 1 
(206) 553· 1037 



maUer without litigation, and in accordance with the Enforcemelll Re~ponse Policy for 

Sectioll 3 I 3 of the Emergency Planning and COllllllllnity Right-to-Kllow ACf alld SeC/ioll 6607 (if 

fhe Po/llllioll Preventioll Ac{, EPA has detennined and Respondent agrecs that an appropriatc 

penalty to seul e Ihi s action is finy-two thousand one hundred dollars ($52. 100). 

4.4. Respondent agrees to pay the total civil penalty set rorth in Paragraph 4.3 within 

thirty (30) days orthe effective date oCthe Final Order contained in Section V of this CAFO. 

4.5. Payment under this CA FO must be made by a cashier' s chcck or certified check 

payable to the order of ·'Treasurer. United States of America" and delivered to the following 

address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 
SI. Louis. MO 63 197-9000 

Respondent must note on the check the title and docket number or this action. 

4.6. Respondent must dcliver photocopies or tbe check described in Paragraph 4.5 on 

the Regional Hearing Clerk and EPA Region 10 at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10, Mail SlOP ORC-ISS 
1200 Sixth A venue, Suite 900 
Seattle, WA 9810 1 

Graham Kim, EPCRA Compl iance Officer 
U.S. Environmenta l Protcction Agency 
Region 10, Mail StopOCE-184 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 
Seattle. IVA 98101 

4.7. If Respondent fails to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by thc due 

date set forth in Paragraph 4.4. the entire unpaid balance of penalty and aeerued interest sha ll 
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become immediately due and owing. Such failure may also subject Respondent to a c ivil action 

to collect the assessed penalty under EPCRA Section 325(f), 42 U.S.C. § 11045(1), together with 

interest, handling charges, and additional non-payment penalt ies described below. 

4 .7.1. Interest. Any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a 

rate established by the Secreta ry ofTreflsury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 37 17(a)(I) from the 

effective date of tile Final Order set forth in Part V; prov ided, however, that no interest 

shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 30 days o rthe 

effect ive date of the Fimtl Order contained herein. 

4.7.2. Handling Charge. Pursuant to 31 USc. § 37 I 7(e)(I), a monthly handling 

charge of $15 shall be paid if any p011ion orthe assessed penalty is more than 30 days 

past due. 

4.7.3 Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 37 [ 7(e)(2), if Respondent 

fails to pay on a timely basis the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3 , Respondent shall pay 

a nonpayment penalty in an amount cquHI to six percent (6%) per annum on any pOltion 

of the assessed penalty that is more than 90 days past due, which nonpayment penalty 

sha ll be calculAted as of the date the underlying penalty lirst becomes past due. 

4.8. The penalty described in Paragraph 4.3 , including allY additionfll costs incurred 

under Paragraph 4.7, above, represents an administrative civi l penalty assessed by EPA and shall 

nOI be deductible for purposes of federal taxes. 

4.9. The undersigned representative of Respondent celtifi es that he or she is 

authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAPO and to bind Respondent to this 

document. 
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4.10. The undersigned representative of Respondent a lso ceniries that, as o f the date o/" 

Respondent 's signature of this CAFO, Respondent has corrected the vio lation(s) alleged in 

Section III and is currentl y, to the best of its knowledge, in compliance with all applicable 

EPCRA requirements. 

4, II. Except as described in Subparagraph 4.7.2 , above. each party shall bear its own 

fees and eosts in bringing o r defendi ng this action. 

4.12. Respondent expressly w<lives any right to contest the allegations und waives any 

right to appeal the Final Order set forth in Part V. 

4.13. The provisions ofrhis CAFO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants, 

employces, Sliccessors, and assigns. 

4.14. The above provisions are STiPULATED AN D AGREED upon by Respondent 

and E I> A Region 10. 

DATED: 

;:£8 . 28 ;?D'Z-
) 

DATED: 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

KENT GIDDINGS, General Manager 
Idaho Milk Products, Inc. 

OWALSK I, Director 
Office of ompliance and Enforcement 
EPA Region 10 
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V. FINAL ORDER 

5.1. The terms orlhe foregoing Parts I ~ I V are ratified and inCOlvorated by reference 

inlo this Final Order. Respondent is ordered to comply wit h the terms or seu lement. 

5.2. This CAFO constitUies a settlement by EPA of all claims lor civi l penalties 

pursuant to EPCRA ror the violations alleged in Pari III In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.31 (a), nothing in this CAFC shall affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue 

appropriate injunctive o r other equ itable reli e r or criminal sanc tions for any violntiolls orlaw. 

This CAFO docs not wa ive, extinguish. or otherwise affect Respondenl's obligati ons to comply 

with a ll applicable provisions of EPCRA and regulations promulgated or pcmlits issued 

thereunder. 

5.3. This Final Order shall become effective upon filin g . 

. ...,1'-. Iff / 
SO ORDERED this _'",_day 01' ___ .... -'--, _"''---___ ., 20 12. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that the original o rthe attached CONS ENT AG REEM ENT AND 
FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: Idaho Milk Products, Inc., Docket No. E PCRA-IO-
2012-0043 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on March 12, 20 12. 

On March 12,2012, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the 
document was delivered to : 

Jillian Bunyan 
Office of Regional C01.msci 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-I 58 
Sui te 900 
Seattle, WA 98101 

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned document 
was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on March 12, 2012, to: 

Kent Giddings 
Idaho Milk Products, Inc. 
165 South 100 East 
Jerome, ill 83338 

DATED this 

C ~. 
CM.bofic~>Lf\L~('\ 

anaacc Smith 
Acting Regional Hearing Clerk 
EPA Region 10 
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